
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 
If you require further information, please contact: Amanda Roden 
Telephone: 01344 352253 
Email: amanda.roden@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 7 March 2012 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Schools Forum 
Thursday 15 March 2012, 4.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 
To: The Schools Forum 
Schools Members: 
Maureen Beadsley, Secondary School Governor 
Trisha Donkin, Primary School Representative 
Andrew Fletcher, Secondary School Representative 
Brian Fries, Secondary School Governor 
Ed Glasson, Primary School Governor 
Gill Harbut, Primary School Representative 
Louise Lovegrove, Primary School Representative 
John McNab, Secondary School Governor 
Kelvin Menon, Primary School Governor 
Joanna Quinn, Primary School Representative 
Tony Reading, Primary School Governor 
Paul Salter, Secondary School Representative 
Trudi Sammons, Primary School Representative 
Anne Shillcock, Special Education Representative 
John Throssell, Primary School Governor  (Vice-Chairman) 
Kathy Winrow, Secondary School Representative 
Vacant, Primary School Representative 
Non-Schools Members 
George Clement, Union Representative (Chairman) 
Kate Sillett, PVI Provider Representative 
Vacant, 14-19 Partnership Representative 
Vacant, Diocese Representative (Roman Catholic) 
One Vacancy, Diocese Representative 
ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Schools Forum 
Thursday 15 March 2012, 4.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 
AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members.  
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any personal or prejudicial interests 
and the nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be 
considered at the meeting.  
 

 

3. Minutes and Matters Arising   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 9 
February 2012.  
 

1 - 6 

4. Local Authority Proposals for the 2012-13 Schools Budget   

 To receive a report which updates members of the Schools Forum on 
the Schools Budget for 2012-13 and seeks views on final budget 
proposals from the Local Authority (LA), and whether requests from the 
LA to the Forum to exercise its statutory decision making powers are 
agreed.  
 

7 - 24 

5. The Scheme for Financing Schools - DfE Consultation on 
Mandatory Changes  

 

 To receive a report which updates members of the Schools Forum on a 
Department for Education (DfE) consultation on mandatory changes 
proposed for local authority Schemes for Financing Schools.  
 

25 - 32 

6. Dates of Future Meetings   

 The next meeting of the Schools Forum is scheduled for Thursday 26 
April 2012 at 4.30pm in the Council Chamber at Easthampstead 
House.  
 

 

 



SCHOOLS FORUM 
9 FEBRUARY 2012 
4.30  - 5.50 PM 
  

 
Present: 
George Clement, Union Representative (Chairman) 
Mike Beadsley, Secondary School Governor 
Brian Fries, Secondary School Governor 
Joanna Quinn, Primary School Representative 
Tony Reading, Primary School Governor 
Trudi Sammons, Primary School Representative 
Anne Shillcock, Special Education Representative 
John Throssell, Primary School Governor  (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Observer: 
Councillor Alan Kendall, Executive Member for Education 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Maureen Beadsley, Secondary School Governor 
Trisha Donkin, Primary School Representative 
Andrew Fletcher, Secondary School Representative 
Ed Glasson, Primary School Governor 
Gill Harbut, Primary School Representative 
Louise Lovegrove, Primary School Representative 
John McNab, Secondary School Governor 
Kelvin Menon, Primary School Governor 
Kathy Winrow, Secondary School Representative 
 

25. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members  
The Forum noted the attendance of the following Substitute Member: 
 
 Mike Beadsley for Maureen Beadsley 

26. Declarations of Interest  
Joanna Quinn declared an interest in Item 5, the Local Authority Budget Proposals for 
2012-13, as a Primary School Representative. 
 
John Throssell declared an interest in Item 5, the Local Authority Budget Proposals 
for 2012-13, as a Primary School Governor. 

27. Minutes and Matters Arising  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2011 be approved 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
Arising on the minutes, the Forum noted that: 
 

Agenda Item 3

1



• A Primary School Representative vacancy would be filled by Liz Cook, 
Headteacher at Owlsmoor Primary School. 

• There was no clash between the next meeting of the Schools Forum 
scheduled for 15 March 2012 and any primary or secondary headteachers’ 
conferences. 

• The Equalities Act for SEN provision reinforced existing legislation and was 
covered by day to day work already undertaken. 

• The manual guidance in relation to the Off Site and Adventurous Activities 
Service had been updated for Headteachers. There were a number of options 
which Headteachers would discuss with their bursars and then they would 
inform which options they would like to take forward. 

28. The Schools Budget - Proposed Use of 2011-12 Forecast Under Spend  
The Forum received a report which sought agreement from the Forum on the 
proposed use of the 2011-12 forecast under spend on the Schools Budget. 
 
Budget monitoring information indicated that there would be an under spend in the 
Schools Budget of £1.3million. Options for the use of the funding included proposals 
to carry forward funding into the following financial year, proposals to increase 
individual school budgets in the current year, and proposals to increase centrally 
managed expenditure in the current year. 
 
A summary of the investment proposals was: 
 

1. £0.500 million to be set aside in a reserve for building adaptations to allow the 
creation of SEN resource units on school sites, subject to a suitable business 
case; 

2. £0.100 million for time limited funding for the Turnaround project for a new 
provision for pupils at risk of exclusion who would receive specialist support 
away from the school but still be on the school roll; 

3. £0.285 million to be set aside in an earmarked reserve to help finance any 
additional costs falling on schools from the Job Evaluation exercise; 

4. £0.015 million for Early Years providers in the PVI; 
5. £0.400 million to be carried forward into 2012-13 to help manage the funding 

gap of £1.9 million, thereby reducing it to £1.5 million. 
 
The financial implications from the proposed secondary SEN Units were expected to 
result in considerable medium to long term savings. 
 
RESOLVED that the investments proposed to be financed from the forecast under 
spending, summarised at paragraph 5.18 of the report, be supported and presented 
to the Executive Member for Education for final approval. 

29. Local Authority Budget Proposals for 2012-13  
The Forum received a report which sought the views of the Forum as an interested 
party on the 2012/13 budget proposals. This was an annual report which involved 
consultation on the budget proposals and comments received would be submitted to 
the Executive on 21 February 2012 with details of the final finance settlement. The 
2012/13 budget would be formally approved at Council on 29 February 2012. 
 
Children, Young People and Learning would provide a £1.6 million contribution to the 
£5 million revenue budget and there would be growth bid of £1 million. The capital 
budget proposals were published before the government’s announcement on the 
levels of capital grants to be allocated for Education. However, subsequent to 

2



publication of the proposals the government had confirmed its intention to allocate 
£5.671 million to the Council for 2012/13. 
 
The Executive was expected to propose that full grant amounts be allocated and fully 
spent on Education. Based on the confirmed grant allocations, if agreed this would 
remove the funding gap on the current work programme of schemes. There were two 
specific grants for pupils places and maintenance. A significant growth in pupil 
numbers was expected in the future and planning was needed for this. 
 
The Forum commented on the 2012/13 budget proposals of the Executive for the 
Children, Young People and Learning Department in respect of the revenue budget 
(Annex B and Annex C) and the capital programme (Annex D). 
 
There was concern amongst some members of the Forum regarding the scale of 
reductions proposed to the revenue budget of Children, Young People and Learning. 
In particular those proposed to the Youth Service and sexual health, Early Years, 
Connexions, School Improvement and Aiming High for Disabled Children as these 
were seen as very valuable services that in general supported vulnerable children 
and prevented more significant issues from developing. The potential impact of these 
service reductions would be brought to the attention of the Executive Member for 
Education. 

30. Initial 2012-13 Schools Budget Proposals and other Financial Matters  
The Forum received a report which updated members on preliminary budget 
information provided to schools on their potential 2012/13 budget and sought views 
on the latest proposals from the Council for the 2012/13 Schools Budget. 
 
The key elements of the Spending Review announced in October 2010 were: 
• annual real terms growth of 0.1% for 15-16 year olds; 
• assumed £1 billion savings to be made by back office functions and 

procurement; 
• a 60% reduction in capital spend; 
• funding for the Pupil Premium would be targeted at disadvantaged pupils and 

would reach £2.5 billion by 2014/15. 
 
The per pupil funding that the Council would receive from the Government through 
the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) would remain unchanged for the second 
consecutive year. Reductions in pupil funding at school level would be capped at 
maximum of 1.5% which was unchanged from the current year. More pupils were 
attracting funding for free school meals through the Pupil Premium which would now 
fund schools on the basis of a pupil’s eligibility at any point over the last six years, 
rather than the existing basis of being eligible at the most recent January census. 
 
The Forum considered the current financial position, which based on data obtained 
from the October 2011 census, indicated a potential funding gap of £1.459 million, if 
all pressures and developments were taken into account. In order to move towards a 
balanced budget, the Council proposed a number of the pressures and developments 
which it considered the lowest priority and should not therefore receive funding next 
year. This would result in around £1.5 million of new funding being allocated for the 
remaining pressures.  
 
Members of the Forum were also reminded that this meeting represented the last 
opportunity to identify any other areas of budget work that should be undertaken and 
made available for consideration in the final proposals for next year’s budget, which 
would be presented to the Forum on 15 March 2012. 

3



 
In response to questions, the Forum was advised that: 
• The Family Intervention Programme was currently fully funded by Bracknell 

Forest Council. There would be no change in the service provided but a 
shared contribution to the project was being sought to reflect the educational 
benefits from the service. 

• The core welfare and psychology services would remain free. 
• The DfE would not likely give a prescriptive format for schools on what should 

be reported to parents on their use of the Pupil Premium. 
 
RESOLVED that the Schools Forum: 
 

1. NOTED that based on current information, a funding gap of £1.459 million 
existed (Table 1, paragraph 5.17). 

 
2. AGREED that in light of the financial position: 

 
i. the items set out in Table 2 were not affordable (paragraph 5.18 - 

5.21). 
 
ii. and subject to other decisions in this paper relating to funding 

pressures and savings, the funding rates to be used in the BF Funding 
Formula for 2012/13 remained unchanged from the 2011/12 values 
(paragraph 5.23). 

 
iii. the hourly funding rates paid to providers of the free entitlement to 

early years education and childcare for 2012/13 remain unchanged 
from 2011/12 values, subject to previously agreed transitional 
adjustments (paragraph 5.23). 

 
iv. the budget proposals set out in Table 3 are included in the provisional 

Schools Budget for 2012/13 (paragraph 5.24). 
 

3. NOTED that schools faced real terms reductions in funding (paragraph 5.26); 
 

4. AGREED the self balancing budget virement relating to the Looked After 
Children’s Education Service (paragraph 5.29); 

 
5. NOTED the changes introduced by the DfE in respect of funding school 

through the Pupil Premium (paragraphs 5.32 – 5.34); 
 

6. AGREED that the arrangements in place for the following were appropriate 
(paragraph 5.37): 

 
a. provisions for statemented pupils (where not delegated). 
b. pupil referral units and other education out of school. 
c. arrangements for insurance. 
d. administrative arrangements for the allocation of central 

government grants. 
e. arrangements for free school meals. 
f. arrangements for early years. 

 
7. NOTED the extent to which the Forum was expected to be requested to 

exercise its statutory powers (paragraph 5.38). 
 

4



8. NOTED that the Council would receive £5.7 million of un-ring fenced 
education related capital grants that were intended to meet pressures for 
additional pupil places and improving the condition of school buildings 
(paragraph 5.39). 

 
9. NOTED that in order that final budgets reflect the most up to date data, there 

would be a need to revisit any preliminary budget decisions agreed now in 
March (paragraph 5.41).  

 
10. AGREED now any further work required in respect of the 2012/13 Schools 

Budget (paragraph 5.41). 

31. Update to the Scheme for Financing Schools  
The Forum considered a report which sought agreement from members to update the 
Bracknell Forest Scheme for Financing Schools. 
 
The Local Authority had consulted with schools in the area and received a 35% 
response rate. Only one area of the consultation received adverse comments from 
schools to the proposals and this related to the intention to re-introduce the scheme 
to claw back significant surplus balances from schools, where six schools, 46% of 
respondents, and 16% of all schools disagreed. It was confirmed that the aim was not 
to claw back surplus and use the funding for other services but to ensure that 
governors carefully considered their spending plans and did not build up significant 
surpluses without good reason which would be detrimental to pupils currently in the 
school. 
 
In response to questions, the Forum was further advised that additional clarity and 
guidance had been added to the text relating to school staff undertaking paid work 
outside their normal contract and that: 
 
• Employees should seek permission from governors if they wished to 

undertake additional work outside of their main role of employment in case 
there were any negative impacts or conflicts with their main role. This was not 
unusual and was often included in contracts of employment. 

 
RESOLVED that the Schools Forum: 
 
AGREED the changes proposed to the Scheme for Financing Schools as set out in 
the consultation document, which would be effective from 1 March 2012, after making 
the following amendments: 
 
i. That the provisions to claw-back significant surplus school balances was 

implemented from the 2012-13 final accounts; 
ii. That the text to govern arrangements for school staff undertaking paid work 

outside their normal terms of employment was as set out in paragraph 5.14 of 
the report. 

 
The Forum agreed that the word ‘consultancy’ should be removed from ii above, to 
reflect any ‘paid work’. 

5



32. Education and Children's Services Financial Benchmarking - 2011-12 Original 
Budget Data  
The Forum received an annual information report that provided members with 
financial benchmarking data in respect of the 2011-12 original budget that had been 
made available by the Department for Education (DfE). 
 
Education was funded from ring-fenced grant and expenditure reflected the decisions 
of the Forum. 

33. Dates of Future Meetings  
The Forum noted that the next meeting was scheduled for Thursday 15 March 2012 
at 4.30pm in the Council Chamber at Easthampstead House. 
 
Future meetings were scheduled for the following dates but meetings would be 
cancelled if there was no business to discuss. 
 
26 April 2012 
14 June 2012 
19 July 2012 
13 September 2012 
18 October 2012 
13 December 2012 
7 February 2013 
14 March 2013 
25 April 2013 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

6



Unrestricted 

 
 

TO: SCHOOLS FORUM 
DATE 15 MARCH 2012 

 
 

LOCAL AUTHORITY PROPOSALS FOR THE 2012-13 SCHOOLS BUDGET 
(Director of Children, Young People and Learning) 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members of the Schools Forum on the 

Schools Budget for 2012-13 and to seek views on: 
 

i. Final budget proposals from the Local Authority (LA), and 
ii. Whether requests from the LA to the Forum to exercise its statutory 

decision making powers are agreed. 
 
1.2 Comments are being sought now on these updated proposals as this is the last 

opportunity for the Forum to make budget recommendations which the Executive 
Member for Education will be requested to agree on 20 March. 

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Schools Forum RECOMMENDS to the Executive Member for 

Education that the 2012-13 Schools Budget includes funding the budget 
proposals as set out in the shaded column of Annex B calculated at a total of 
£1.576m; 

 
2.2 That the Schools Forum AGREES the following decisions that it is solely 

responsible for: 
 

1. that the school specific contingency for 2012-13 be set at £0.302m 
(paragraph 5.30 (1), Table 3); 

2. That the combined services budget that supports joint education and 
children’s social care initiatives is set at £0.691m (paragraph 5.30 (2)). 

3. That in agreeing the budget proposals, the central expenditure limit can 
be exceed by the required amount (paragraph 5.31); 

 
2.3 That the Schools Forum NOTES: 
 

1. That most units of resource used in the BF Funding Formula for Schools 
will be frozen at 2011-12 rates, as would the hourly funding rates paid to 
early years providers (paragraph 5.4); 

2. That to comply with the latest DfE requirements, the schools 
contingency budget will be restructure so that SEN related funding that 
is allocated to schools in-year is held as a discrete SEN budget 
(paragraph 5.30 (1)); 

3. Some centrally managed budgets will need to be restructured in year to 
reflect the academy funding related DSG top-slice (paragraph 5.35); 

4. That the 2012-13 budget for each service is set out in Annex D. 

Agenda Item 4

7



Unrestricted 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Regulations require the Schools Forum to be consulted on relevant budget 

proposals, and when requested, to consider whether any of the Forum’s statutory 
budget decision making powers need to be exercised. 

 
3.2 The views of the Schools Forum are now being sought so that they can be presented 

as final recommendations for the 2012-13 Schools Budget to the Executive Member 
for Education. 

 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 These have been considered during the budget consultation stage and previous 

reports to the Forum. 
 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Background and update from previous meeting 
 
5.1 At its meeting on 9 February 2012, a report was presented to the Forum which set 

out preliminary proposals from the LA in respect of the Schools Budget for 2012-13. 
These proposals reflected the latest funding information from the government which 
has frozen per pupil funding rates to 2011-12 values and preliminary calculations of 
pressures and developments. 

 
5.2 Based on the information available at that stage, it was estimated income would 

increase by £1.503m and that there would be net pressures of £2.962m, resulting in 
a budget gap of £1.459m. In order to move towards a balanced budget, the Forum 
agreed that a number of pressures and developments could not proceed and that 
they should be removed from the final budget proposals that the LA would present at 
this meeting. The items that would not to be funded fell into 3 categories as follows, 
with more details set out in Annex A: 

 
a. Pressures not recognised by the government in the funding settlement. 
b. Desirable, not essential new developments. 
c. Alternative funding source identified. 

 
5.3 Removing these pressures meant that the following items were expected to be 

affordable and therefore included in next year’s Schools Budget, with an unallocated 
balance of £0.066m, with more details set out in Annex B. 

 
a. Increase in pupil numbers, including expanding the new Jennett’s Park 

Primary School to a 2 form of entry admission from September 2012 
b. Increase in numbers and average needs of pupils with SEN. 
c. Increased funding rates for schools in support of SEN pupils to reflect actual 

costs being incurred by schools 
d. Non pupil data changes that impact on the Funding Formula e.g. eligibility to 

free school meals. 
e. Set up costs for new SEN resource units to allow for significant medium to 

long term savings 
f. Funding for schools to purchase non-statutory services from Education 

Welfare and Education Psychology Services. 

8



Unrestricted 

g. Additional tuition to a range of pupils receiving alternative education provision 
outside of schools. 

h. The increased incidence of school classroom staff being absent through 
statutory maternity leave. 

i. Contribution to the Family Intervention Project to reflect the education benefits 
arising from reduced truancy, exclusions and bad behaviour. 

 
5.4 A consequence of these provisional decisions was that most units of resource used 

in the BF Funding Formula for Schools would be frozen at 2011-12 rates, as would 
the hourly funding rates paid to early years providers in the private, voluntary and 
independent (PVI) sector (excluding any previously agreed transitional funding 
adjustments). 

 
5.5 It was also recognised that the initial budget proposals were based on a mix of 

January 2011 and October 2011 census data that would be updated with January 
2012 actuals, and therefore all reported amounts would be subject to change. 

 
5.6 The Forum also agreed that the proposals presented covered all the key issues 

required for next year’s budget and that no other areas needed to be considered. It 
was also recognised that whilst the Forum agreed that the draft budget proposals 
allowed for a balanced budget, this would only be possible by not funding all of the 
unavoidable pressures that schools would face, such as teacher and other staff pay 
increments, increases in employer contributions to the local government pension 
scheme and general inflationary pressures. Therefore, schools are facing real terms 
funding cuts and it is possible that as a consequence of the tight financial settlement, 
there may be an increase in the number of schools facing financial difficulties. 

 
5.7 More up to date budget information is now available, and as there is a statutory 

requirement to publish the budget by the end of March, this report represents the final 
opportunity for the Forum to make recommendations to the Executive Member for the 
2012-13 budget.  
 
Final budget proposals for 2012-13 

 
Estimated level of Dedicated Schools Grant and other income 

 
5.8 Members of the Forum will be aware that the main source of income to the Schools 

Budget is the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and that the Council’s DSG allocation 
is determined by multiplying the guaranteed amount of per pupil funding of £4,861 by 
the actual number of pupils on roll each January. This headcount includes pupils at 
maintained schools, 3 and 4 year olds in PV) sector settings and pupils receiving 
education out of school or out of borough in PVI special schools. 

 
5.9 The previous report indicated that estimating the number of 3 and 4 year olds at each 

census has proved to be the most difficult element of this calculation and the final 
census data for these children may be significantly different from that indicated on the 
October census data, and this is the case.   

 
5.10 Provisional data from the January 2012 census in respect of 3 and 4 year olds shows 

a 72.6 increase in full time equivalent places. There is an increase of 16.7 statutory 
aged pupils, with an increase of 8 children in non-BFC maintained special schools or 
who are receiving education outside school. Overall, these changes result in funding 
for an extra 97.3 children being received, which equates to an increase in the DSG 
estimate from last month of £0.473m. 

 

9



Unrestricted 

5.11 There remains the possibility that pupil numbers will change following data checking 
by schools and the DfE, especially in respect of data from non-maintained schools 
and early years providers in the PVI sector where past experience has shown that 
this data is often subject to change. Confirmed numbers will not be released by the 
DfE until June, which will be after the point when budget decisions have to be taken. 
Therefore, the contingency of £0.243m included in the previous budget report is 
proposed to remain to cover a possible over estimate of DSG income or to meet 
unforeseen in-year increases in costs on centrally managed budgets. Should the final 
DSG income be significantly different from that anticipated when the Executive 
Member makes final budget decisions later this month, the Forum will be informed of 
any adjustments that are made. 

 
5.12 There has also been a revision to the forecast surplus balance at the end of 2011-12 

which will impact on the level of one-off funding available to support next year’s 
budget. The carry forward for planning purposes is now estimated to be £0.230m, the 
amount already included in the current base budget and therefore, there are no 
additional resources available to fund costs in 2012-13 from that included in the 
2011-12 base budget. The previous report incorrectly added all of the estimated carry 
forward anticipated at that time - £0.400m – as a funding increase to the base budget 
but this now needs to be removed. In respect of the reduced forecast surplus, the 
main areas of change relate to £0.251m additional costs associated with supporting 
pupils with SEN, which is partially offset by a £0.097m saving on early years 
provisions and support services. Both of these late changes are expected to continue 
into 2012-13, requiring permanent budget changes. 

 
5.13 The overall effect of these changes, including the £0.066m unallocated balance of 

funds reported in February, indicates that there is expected to be £0.139m more 
income than previously anticipated. Annex C sets out a summary of the forecast 
changes.  

 
Changes to the budget proposals made in February 

 
5.14 This section only sets out the changes in funding against items which are now 

proposed to be amended compared to the amount reported in February. Therefore, 
the figures quoted represent the adjustment now proposed, and not the total budget 
requirement. Annex B sets out the total budget changes now being proposed. 

 
 Budgets delegated to schools and PVI early years providers 
 
5.15 The majority of budget allocations to schools for pupil led funding must be based on 

actual head count data collected from schools and other providers each January. 
Based on current data, budget allocations to mainstream schools for statutory aged 
pupil, including a lump sum adjustment for the new primary school at Jennett’s Park 
to reflect expansion to a second form of entry from September 2102 have increased 
by £0.003m.  

 
5.16 In respect of changes in funding allocations to providers of early years education and 

childcare, paragraph 5.10 above indicated a significant increase in funded pupils in 
maintained schools and this translates to a £0.091m pressure. This is lower than 
expected from the increase in funded children, and arises due to schools being 
funded on termly participation, and not just January take-up, which tends to have 
higher participation than other funding census points. Overall, take-up has increased 
by 42 full time equivalent children (23,955 hours). 

 

10



Unrestricted 

5.17 In respect of PVI early years providers, there is not expected to be any significant 
change in cost from the current financial year. As set out above in paragraph 5.12, 
there is a budget under spending which is expected to continue, allowing for a 
£0.088m reduction to be made against next year’s budget. 

 
5.18 The school census also provides a range of non-head count which is used for the 

purposes of funding schools. The January data indicates that allocations for pupil 
eligibility to a free school meal are £0.144m less than previously expected. The main 
reason for the change relates to a very significant correction being made against the 
data supplied by one school at the October census which results in a funding 
reduction of £0.126m compared to the amount included on the indicative budget that 
was sent to the school in December. There has also been an increase in uptake in 
school meals, and this results in an additional allocation of £0.013m. Overall, these 
data changes result in £0.129m less funds being allocated to schools. 

 
5.19 The cost of support provided to statemented pupils in mainstream schools has also 

been updated from a costed schedule of pupils as at the end of January. This 
indicates a cost increase of £0.284m, which is £0.219m greater than the forecast 
provided at the last meeting and continues the cost pressure being experienced in 
the current financial year. The full year effect of the latest costed schedule shows that 
compared to January 2011, there are an extra 27 pupils (+9.7%) with a statement (up 
from 278 to 305), with the average cost of support also increasing, by 8.1% to 
£5,928. The reasons for this increase are still being investigated, with initial 
information indicating that more children are staying on in school, which meant the 
anticipated cost reduction in the second half of the year did not materialise, and 
increased needs and numbers which arise both from pressures from schools for 
additional funding and the general increase in school population.  

 
5.20 An impact from the increase in numbers of statemented pupils is that the cost review 

exercise to fund schools for statemented pupils at the actual level of spend has 
increased by £0.031m to £0.101m.  

 
5.21 There is one further change now proposed on budgets to be allocated to schools and 

this relates to fully delegating to schools the cost of internet and broadband services. 
Following the completion of the new contract which has a different delivery model, 
there is no longer a need to centrally manage part of the budget and therefore an 
additional £0.072m is proposed to be allocated to schools. This further amount is 
proposed to be distributed on the existing basis of 40% as a fixed amount per school 
and 60% as an amount per pupil. There is no financial effect from this change as 
there will be a compensating saving on the budget currently managed by the Council. 

 
5.22 As elements of the budget have been amended, and more resources allocated to 

schools, there has been an impact on the Minimum Funding Guarantee and this is 
now £0.064m lower than previously estimated, with 5 schools receiving top up 
funding which totals to £0.060m. 

 
Budgets managed by the Council on behalf of schools 

 
5.23 As well as pressures on SEN budgets in schools, there are also additional pressures 

on centrally managed SEN budgets. Non-maintained special schools costs are 
forecast to increase by a further £0.041m and committed additional support 
arrangements for pupils accessing the sensory consortium service are anticipated to 
increase by £0.030m. 

 

11



Unrestricted 

5.24 There are two other changes proposed to Council managed budgets. Firstly, there is 
the £0.072m saving arising from delegating to schools the balance of budget held for 
the internet and broadband service which is set out above in paragraph 5.21. 
Secondly, there has been a revised calculation of school costs associated with the 
carbon reduction commitment (CRC), with additional costs of £0.005m now expected 
to complete the purchase of carbon allowances. 

 
5.25 Finally, consideration needs to be given to the level of school specific contingency. 

Members of the Forum will be aware that all this funding is allocated to schools and 
other providers, with the main commitments relating to funding in-year increases in 
the cost of supporting children with SEN, significant increases in the number of pupils 
admitted by a school between January and September, and changes in take up of 
the free entitlement to early years education and childcare. Reviewing these 
elements of costs, taking account of actual changes in 2011-12 and those forecast in 
2012-13, no change is proposed on the total funding in the contingency although a 
re-alignment against different items is required.  

 
5.26 The DfE has issued instructions to LAs relating to the school specific contingency, 

indicating that any funding held for in-year changes in financial support to schools 
relating to pupils with special educational needs should not be held in the 
contingency, but added to a specific special educational needs budget that is initially 
managed by LAs. Therefore the amount agreed for this purpose needs to be moved 
out of the contingency into a new budget line.  

 
More information on the proposals for the schools contingency is set out below at 
paragraph 5.30 (1). 
 
Net effect of proposed changes 

 
5.27 Table 1 below summarises the financial effect of the changes now being proposed 

compared to those supported at the last meeting in February which presents a 
balanced budget. A breakdown of all the proposals, including those with no change is 
set out in Annex B. 

 
Table 1: Summary of changes to budget proposals 

 
Para 
Xref 

Item of change from February £ 000 
     

  Additional income:   
     

5.3 Unallocated balance at February -66 
5.10 Additional DSG -473 
5.12 Reduction in available balances 400 

     

  Total additional income -139 
     
  Cost reductions:   
     

5.17 Early Years PVI providers -88 
5.18 Non-pupil data - mainly eligibility to free school meals -129 
5.22 Minimum Funding Guarantee -64 

     

  Total cost reductions -283 
     
  Total for allocation -420 
     

12



Unrestricted 

 
Para 
Xref 

Item of change from February £ 000 
     

  Cost pressures:   
     

5.15 Change in statutory aged pupil numbers 3 
5.16 Change in early years pupil numbers 91 
5.19 Increase in statemented pupils 219 
5.20 Statemented pupils cost review 31 
5.23 Non-LA special schools 41 
5.23 Sensory services 30 
5.24 Carbon reduction levy 5 

     

  Total cost pressures 420 
      

 
 
5.28 The Forum may wish to consider whether any of the other budget pressures that are 

not currently funded, as set out in Annex A, should receive funding, rather than those 
proposed above. 
 
Summary of provisional Schools Budget position 
 

5.29 Table 2 below sets out a summary of how the additional £1.576m of income will be 
allocated in next year’s budget, should the proposals set out in this paper be 
supported. Annex D provides a detailed breakdown of the budget by type of service 
delivery. 

 
Table 2: Summary Schools Budget proposals for 2012-13 

 
Item Delegated LA Total 
  Managed  
 £m £m £m 
Proposed changes from Annex B: 1.275 0.301 1.576 
Total overall increase 1.275 0.301 1.576 

 
 

Decisions for the Schools Forum 
 
5.30 Statutory regulations have conveyed powers to the Schools Forum in respect of 

certain decisions around the Schools Budget. Assuming the budget proposals made 
in this report are supported, then the Forum will need to agree the following: 

 
1 That the level of school specific contingency for 2012-13 will remain 

unchanged at £0.571m, subject to moving funding to support pupils in 
schools with special educational needs to a new specific SEN budget line. A 
breakdown of the relevant budget amounts in the current year, and those 
now proposed for next year are set out below in Table 3. Note, due to the 
nature of a contingency, where future liabilities are unknown, the proposed 
budget breakdown is indicative within the total estimated amount of funds. 
The contingency will be managed during the year across the relevant items, 
in the light of changing circumstances. 

13



Unrestricted 

Table 3: Proposed break down of the school specific contingency 
 

Item 2011-12 2012-13 Change 
Maintained schools    
1. General provision for errors or 
exceptional costs 

15 15 0 
2. Exceptional pupil growth (6 classes) 185 137 -48 
3. Year on year budget protection for 
loses greater than 5% 

30 30 0 
Total maintained schools  230  182 -  48 
SEN related    
4. In-year change in support to SEN 
pupils in mainstream schools 

100 148 48 
5. Change in number / needs at Kennel 
Lane Special School / other exceptional 
SEN costs 

121 121 0 

Total SEN related  221  269   48 
Early Years providers    
6. General provision for errors / growth 100 100 0 
7.  Sustainability Fund 10 10 0 
8.  SEN Fund 10 10 0 
Total Early Years 120 120 0 
    

Total Contingency Budget 571 571 0 
 
 

It can be seen that two changes are proposed, and these reflect a mixture of 
recent trends and future forecasts. 
 
The proposal to transfer £0.048m from the exceptional pupil growth 
allowance (item 2) to in-year change in support to SEN pupils in mainstream 
schools (item 4) reflects the latest information the LA has for these 
pressures. In respect of exceptional pupil growth, which is paid to schools 
where their statutory number of pupils increase by at least 20 between 
January and September, the pupils expected to enter schools in September 
compared to the current year groups leaving indicates that 6 growth 
allowances will be payable. This is a decrease from the 8 currently allowed 
for in the budget. Regarding other SEN pressures, this change will provide a 
budget at the level of in-year cost increases experienced in mainstream 
schools in 2011-12. 
 
Taking account of the latest DfE instructions on categorising SEN budgets, 
the £0.269m currently held in the contingency at lines 4 and 5 above in 
Table 3 will be moved to an SEN specific budget, thereby reducing the level 
of school specific contingency to £0.302m. This change is highlighted in a 
separate column of the budget book, at Annex D. 

 
2 That the total budget allocated to combined services that support both 

education and children’s social care objectives be set at £0.691m, an 
increase of £0.100m to fund the Family Intervention Project. This reflects 
previous budget decisions and the proposals in this report, with Annex D 
providing a summary of where the DSG is proposed to be spent. 

14



Unrestricted 

Central Expenditure Limit (CEL) 
 
5.31 The DfE prescribes a formula that LAs must use to determine whether Local 

Authority budget proposals result in a greater percentage increase in centrally 
managed budget items than those proposed for combined delegated school budgets, 
including YPLA funded sixth forms, and Early Years PVI providers. Where proposals 
indicate that LA managed items are increasing at a higher percentage that those to 
be delegated to schools, the CEL requires consent from the Schools Forum for the 
proposals to proceed. Using the DfE toolkit to calculate CEL, these budget proposals 
result in LA managed expenditure increasing by 2.8% and budgets delegated to 
schools by 2.0%. The proposals in this report are estimated to exceed the CEL by 
around £0.100m, which the Forum is recommended to agree.  

  
Potential for further change 

 
5.32 Due to the on-going process of checking and confirming data used for budget setting 

purposes, both by the LA, maintained schools and other providers, there is the 
possibility that this will identify the need to make amendments to these proposals. 
Should any further changes to these proposals be required, they will be presented to 
the Executive Member for a decision in March, and reported to the Forum in the new 
financial year.  
 
Pupil Premium 

 
5.33 The DfE has provided updated data relating to the free school meals element of the 

Pupil Premium. Members of the Forum will be aware that the Pupil Premium is the 
only source of new money for schools in the local government financial settlement 
and that the majority of the funding is allocated to schools on the basis of £600 per 
pupil on roll each January who have been eligible to a free school meal at any point 
in the last 6 years - the ‘Ever 6’ methodology. This is a change from the current year, 
which allocated funds based purely on pupils on roll who were eligible to a free 
school meal at the time of the January census. 

 
5.34 Funding is also allocated through the Pupil Premium to support children looked after 

for more than 6 months and also those whose parents are in the armed forces, who 
are funded at £250. Overall, Bracknell schools are estimated to receive in total 
around £1.336m from the Pupil Premium, an increase of £0.732m compared to the 
£0.632m received in the current year. 
 
Other items 

 
5.35 There will need to be a degree of budget restructuring in the new year when the 

amount of top-slice deducted from the Schools Budget for Ranelagh Academy to 
provide certain services that the Council manages for other schools from centrally 
retained budgets has been determined by the DfE. This process calculates the Local 
Authority Central Services Equivalent Grant (LACSEG) which is then deducted from 
the Council’s DSG allocation. In order to limit the financial impact arising from this, 
relevant budgets will be reviewed and deductions processed where a saving can be 
anticipated as a result of no longer having to provide a service to Ranelagh, or 
income will be earned through trading to offset part or all of the LACSEG deduction.  

  

15



Unrestricted 

Conclusion 
 
5.36 A balanced budget has been presented, but there are still a significant number of 

pressures that will not be funded and schools and providers will need to manage this 
through greater efficiencies and reductions in service levels. The LA is available to 
offer advice and support to those providers facing financial difficulties. 

 
5.37 There are also some uncertainties over income and costs, which are planned to be 

managed through the contingency proposals. 
 
 Next steps 
 
5.38 The Executive Member for Education is responsible for making most budget 

decisions on the Schools Budget and will be requested to agree the 
recommendations from the Schools Forum, after taking account of any new 
information that arises. These decisions will be taken on 20 March, with schools 
receiving their budget notifications before April. 

 
 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 The relevant legal requirements are contained within the body of the report.  
 
 Borough Treasurer 
 
6.2 The financial implications arising from this report are set out within the supporting 

information and present a budget that can be funded from the overall level of 
anticipated resources. 

 
 Impact Assessment 
 
6.3 Impact assessments will be undertaken on the budget proposal agreed at this 

meeting in advance of the final budget decisions of the Executive Member which are 
due to be taken in March. 

 
 Strategic Risk Management Issues  
 
6.4 A sum of £0.243m has been deducted from the anticipated level of DSG income over 

the next two years to meet the possibility of an over estimation of pupil numbers and 
the costs of unpredictable or unforeseen items that would represent in year budget 
risks. There is a further £0.302m proposed for the school specific contingency to 
meet the cost of other forecast in-year budget pressures, £0.269m in an SEN specific 
fund and £0.304m if required to support schools in financial difficulty or in Ofsted 
categories. The Executive Member will need to consider whether sufficient 
contingencies have been set aside in the budget. 

 

16



Unrestricted 

7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 Governing bodies, early years PVI providers, Schools Forum. 
 
 Method of Consultation 
 
7.2 Written consultation documents. 
 
 Representations Received 
 
7.3 Set out in this and previous budget reports. 
 
Background Papers 
Reports to Schools Forum: 
Various DfE guidance notes on School Funding 
 
Contact for further information 
David Watkins, Chief Officer: SR&EI     (01344 354061) 
david.watkins@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Paul Clark, Head of Departmental Finance   (01344 354054) 
paul.clark@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
G:\New Alluse\Executive\Schools Forum\(55) 150312\Local Authority Budget proposals for the Schools Budget 
2012-13.doc 

17



Unrestricted 
Annex A 

 
 

Pressures and developments agreed not to be funded in 2012-13 
by the Schools Forum  

 
Ref Item not to be funded 2012/13 current estimates 
   

Delegated 
to schools 

£ 000 
Managed 
by LA 
£ 000 

Total 
 

£ 000 
         
  Cost pressures not recognised in the funding settlement    
         

1 Inflation 250 120 370 
2 Increase in employer LGPS rate 40 10 50 
          

  Net cost pressures not funded by DfE 290 130 420 
          
  Desirable budget developments (not essential)     
          

3 Additional 0.5% inflation to minimum costs 230 30 260 
4 Building maintenance 50 0 50 
5 Learning Support Units 185 0 185 
6 4 year olds from September 2011 – balance 

of pressure not funded in 2011-12 460 0 460 
7 Additional speech and language support 0 50 50 
          

  Net non-essential budget developments 925 80 1,005 
          
  Alternative funding source identified       
          

8 Capital expenditure  0 100 100 
          

  Net alternative funding source 0 100 100 
          

 Total pressures not to be funded 1,215 310 1,525 
          

 Estimated Shortfall – February 2012   1,459 
        
  Unallocated balance     66 

 
 

 

18



Unrestricted 
Annex B 
 

Summary of budget pressures proposed to be incorporated 
 into the 2012-13 budget 

 
Ref Item 2012-13 estimate 

  
9 Feb 
Forum 
£ 000 

15 March 
Forum 
£ 000 

Change 
 

£ 000 
 Items delegated to schools    
1 Change in pupil numbers 

Based on a provisional analysis of the January 2012 
census, there has been an increase of 252 pupils on 
roll. The calculation also reflects a £0.088m reduction in 
the lump sum additional allocation to Jennett’s Park to 
reflect the increase to 2 forms of entry at September 
2012 and includes an allowance for additional staffing 
and other cost increases as a larger proportion of the 
budget is funded on actual pupil data. 

596 598 2 

2 Change in 3 and 4 year olds 
This net pressure reflects the impact in maintained 
schools, where take-up has increased by 42 full time 
equivalent children (23,955 hours), with a pressure of 
£0.091m. For the PVI sector, whilst take-up has 
remained fairly constant, the current budget is being 
under spent, and a saving of £0.088m can be made. 

0 3 3 

3 Kennel Lane Special School (KLS) 
The student profile at KLS continue to change, with the 
school admitting a higher proportion of students with 
the most complex cases, which requires additional 
financial support. KLS provides high quality, local and 
cost effective support to students. 

142 143 1 

4 Statemented pupils in mainstream schools 
The full year effect of the latest costed schedule shows 
that compared to January 2011, there are an extra 27 
pupils (+9.7%) with a statement (up from 278 to 305), 
with the average cost of support also increasing, by 
8.1% to £5,928.. 

65 284 219 

5 Statemented pupils in mainstream schools 
There has been a review to compare actual costs to 
schools to support statemented pupils compared to the 
additional funding provided. This has identified a 
funding shortfall. 

70 101 31 

6 Data changes, including MFG 
Allocations to schools for deprivation funding based on 
the proportion of pupils eligible to a free school meal 
have decreased by £0.144m, mainly as a result of 
amending incorrect data supplied in the October 
census. There has also been a £0.014m increase in 
funding to provide school meals to reflect a rise in take-
up, with a reduction of £0.065m from the impact of the 
Minimum Funding Guarantee. 

232 38 
 

-194 

19



Unrestricted 
 

Ref Item 2012-13 estimate 

  
9 Feb 
Forum 
£ 000 

15 March 
Forum 
£ 000 

Change 
 

£ 000 
 Items delegated to schools (continued)    
7 Additional delegation – internet and broadband 

Following the completion of the new contract which has 
a different delivery model, there is no longer a need to 
centrally manage part of the budget and therefore an 
additional £0.072m is proposed to be allocated to 
schools. A compensating saving is reported below 
against centrally managed budgets. 

0 72 72 

9 Traded Service –Education Welfare 
A buy-back service will be available for schools that 
supports non-statutory education welfare services, such 
as securing high levels of pupil attendance. 

18 18 0 

10 Traded Service – Education Psychology 
A buy-back service will be available for schools that 
supports non-statutory education psychology services 
that will allow for additional visits, training and general 
support to vulnerable children. 

18 18 0 

     
11 Sub total items delegated to schools 1,141 1,275 135 

20



Unrestricted 
 

Ref Item 2012-13 estimate 

  
9 Feb 
Forum 
£ 000 

15 March 
Forum 
£ 000 

Change 
 

£ 000 
 Items centrally managed by the Council    

12 Alternative Education Provision 
There are additional statutory duties relating to 
providing suitable full time education for pupils who are 
unable to attend school by reason of accident, illness or 
pregnancy or who are described as ‘school-phobic’. A 
separate report has previously been presented to the 
Forum in respect of this. 

60 60 0 

13 Special Educational Needs – Resource Units 
The development of additional SEN Resource Units in 
the borough is expected to result in small increase in 
costs in the short term before significant annual savings 
are achieved. NB this item was previously categorised 
as delegated to schools but will now be held centrally to 
comply with latest DfE guidance, pending conclusion of 
discussions with schools to open new units. 

32 32 0 

14 External SEN placement costs 
The latest costed schedule of pupils with SEN who are 
expected to be placed outside of BF maintained 
schools indicates additional cost next year against the 
current budget. 

80 121 41 

15 Sensory impairment 
The latest costed schedule of pupils with sensory 
needs that require specialist support has increased, 
with know costs forecast to continue at the higher level 
into next financial year. 

0 30 30 

16 Additional delegation – internet and broadband 
This item offsets the pressure on delegated school 
budgets in line 7 above and is possible following the 
completion of the new contract which has a different 
delivery model. There is no net financial impact from 
lines 7 and 16. 

0 -72 -72 

17 Carbon reduction commitment (CRC) 
There has been a revised calculation of school costs 
associated with the CRC, with additional costs of 
£0.005m now expected to complete the purchase of 
carbon allowances. 

0 5 5 

18 Maternity leave cover 
There has been an increase in the incidence of 
classroom staff taking maternity leave which has 
resulted in a budget over spend which is expected to 
continue into 2012-13.  

25 25 0 

19 Family Intervention Project (FIP) 
The FIP works with families who are experiencing 
multiple problems. Evidence suggest that interventions 
reduce school truancy, exclusion and bad behaviour. 

100 100 0 

     

20 Sub total items managed by the Council  297  301    4 
     

21 Total delegated and Council managed 1,437 1,576 139 
 

21



Unrestricted 
Annex C 

Change in estimated income 
 

Ref Item 9 February 15 March Change 
  Forum Forum  
January 2011 headcount data    
     
1 DSG pupil numbers in maintained schools 14,522.1 14,522.1  
2 DSG pupil numbers other than maintained schools 906.9 906.9  

       

3 Final adjusted pupil numbers for 2010/11 DSG 15,429.0 15,429.0  
          

Estimated changes to January 2011 headcount data        
          
4 Change in numbers in maintained schools  +232.6 +321.9 +89.3 
5 Change in numbers other than in maintained schools -35.9 -27.9 +8.0 
6 Contingency for overstatement of pupil numbers etc  -50.0 -50.0 0.0 

        

7 Total estimated change in pupil numbers +146.7 +244.0 +97.3 
          

Estimated January 2012 headcount data        
          
8 Total estimated pupil numbers 15,575.7 15,673.0 +97.3 
     
9 Annual change 1.0% 1.6% 0.6% 
     

Calculation of available income    
     

10 Total Guaranteed DSG £4,860.95 £4,860.95  
     

11 Total Estimated DSG Income £75.713 m £76.186 m  
     

12 Less provision for Academy funding deduction -£0.086 m -£0.086 m  
     

13 Available DSG Funding £75.627 m £76.100 m  
     

14 Current DSG Base Budget £74.524 m £74.524 m  
     

15 Change in DSG funding £1.103 m £1.576 m £0.473 m 
     

Calculation of available balances from 2011-12    
     

16 Estimated change in balances from current base budget £0.400 m Nil         
     

17 Increase in income £1.503 m £1.576 m -£0.400 m 
     

18 Balances included in base budget £0.230 m £0.230 m  
     

19 Unallocated funding at February   £0.066 m 
     

20 Total additional funds to allocate [15+17+19]   £0.139 m 
     

21 Total funds to spend [13+18]  £76.330 m  
     

 

22



Unrestricted 
Annex D 

Objective Budget Book Analysis – 2012-13 
 
Budget item 2011-12 Change Proposed 2012-13 Annual

Original Budget Budget Provisional Change
Budget Build Realignment Budget

Delegated School Budgets
Primary £32,303,890 £900,210 £0 £33,204,100 2.8%
Secondary £26,395,520 £316,770 £0 £26,712,290 1.2%
Special £3,242,440 £146,030 £0 £3,388,470 4.5%

£61,941,850 £1,363,010 £0 £63,304,860 2.2%
SEN provisions and support
External pupil placements £4,612,250 £120,990 £0 £4,733,240 2.6%
Sensory impairment support to schools £115,000 £0 £0 £115,000 0.0%
Teaching and support services £713,110 £30,000 £0 £743,110 4.2%
Language and Literacy Service £130,360 £0 £0 £130,360 0.0%
In-year allocations to schools £0 £32,000 £269,000 £301,000 0.0%
Traveller Education £75,140 £0 £0 £75,140 0.0%

£5,645,860 £182,990 £269,000 £6,097,850 3.2%
Combined Services
Procurement Specialist £32,680 £0 £0 £32,680 0.0%
Margaret Wells Furby Resource Centre £156,850 £0 £0 £156,850 0.0%
Young people in sport £18,050 £0 £0 £18,050 0.0%
Attainment of LAC £113,590 £0 £20,000 £133,590 17.6%
English as an Additional Language £128,740 £0 £0 £128,740 0.0%
Common Assessment Framework £42,470 £0 £0 £42,470 0.0%
Maintaining LAC in BFC £62,890 £0 -£20,000 £42,890 -31.8%
Education Health Partnerships £30,000 £0 £0 £30,000 0.0%
Family Intervention Project £0 £100,000 £0 £100,000 0.0%
Families subject to domestic abuse £6,000 £0 £0 £6,000 0.0%

£591,270 £100,000 £0 £691,270 16.9%
Education out of school
Pupil Referral Service £747,230 £0 £0 £747,230 0.0%
Home and group tuition £264,090 £60,000 £0 £324,090 22.7%

£1,011,320 £60,000 £0 £1,071,320 5.9%
Pupil behaviour
CMCD £31,870 £0 £0 £31,870 0.0%
Behaviour Support Team and others £495,060 £0 £0 £495,060 0.0%

£526,930 £0 £0 £526,930 0.0%
Early Years
PVI Providers £2,856,060 -£88,000 £0 £2,768,060 -3.1%
SEN Co-ordinators and others £224,140 £0 £0 £224,140 0.0%

£3,080,200 -£88,000 £0 £2,992,200 -2.9%
Other items
Official staff absence £332,880 £25,000 £0 £357,880 7.5%
Licence fees £109,730 £0 £0 £109,730 0.0%
Practical learning options £220,360 £0 £0 £220,360 0.0%
School Specific Contingency £572,750 £0 -£269,000 £303,750 -47.0%
Premature retirement costs £53,650 £0 £0 £53,650 0.0%
School Admissions £157,690 £0 £0 £157,690 0.0%
Schools in financial difficulty £304,470 £0 £0 £304,470 0.0%
Former Standards Fund Projects £72,000 -£72,000 £0 £0 -100.0%
Carbon Reduction Commitment £75,000 £5,000 £0 £80,000 6.7%
Other £58,040 £0 £0 £58,040 0.0%

£1,956,570 -£42,000 -£269,000 £1,645,570 -2.1%
Income
Brought forward from previous years -£230,000 £0 £0 -£230,000 0.0%
DSG -£74,524,000 -£1,576,000 £0 -£76,100,000
Total Income -£74,754,000 -£1,576,000 £0 -£76,330,000 n/a  
Net £0 £0 £0 £0 0.0%
 

Note: £20k budget re-alignment in Combined Service Budgets was agreed by Forum on 9 February. 
23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

TO: SCHOOLS FORUM 
DATE: 15 MARCH 2012 

 
 

THE SCHEME FOR FINANCING SCHOOLS –  
DFE CONSULTATION ON MANDATORY CHANGES 
 Director of Children Young People & learning 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members of the Schools Forum to a 

Department for Education (DfE) consultation on mandatory changes proposed for 
local authority Schemes for Financing Schools. 

 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The proposed directed revisions to the Scheme for Financing Schools, as set 

out in Annex A, are NOTED; 
 
2.2 That the Forum considers what response, if any, it wishes to make to the 

consultation. 
 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To update the Schools Forum on likely changes required by the DfE to the 

Scheme for Financing Schools, and to give the opportunity to comment on 
them.  

  
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 Not applicable.  
 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Background 
 

5.1 Each Local Authority (LA) is required to publish a Scheme for Financing Schools (the 
“Scheme”). This sets out the financial relationship between the LA and the 
maintained schools which it funds, so does not apply to academy schools. It is a 
legally binding document on both the LA and schools relating to financial 
management and associated issues. 

 
5.2 Local Schools Forums have the statutory power to agree Scheme content, where 

there is discretion, and the latest revision to the Bf Scheme was approved at the last 
meeting of the Forum, and became effective from 1 March 2012. 

  

Agenda Item 5

25



Unrestricted 

 
DfE role in development of Schemes 

 
5.3 The DfE issues statutory guidance that needs to be taken into account in developing 

Schemes. This sets the minimum subjects to be covered, and in certain instances, 
can prescribe text that must be included. 

 
5.4 To reflect current policy, the DfE has issued a short consultation on changes it is 

proposing must be made to all Schemes. These directed revisions are compulsory, 
and are expected to become effect from1 April 2012. The areas included on the 
consultation are: 

 
1 Removing the requirement on schools to submit a best value statement. 

(This has already been removed from the BF Scheme). 
2 Removing the requirement on schools to meet the Financial Management 

Standard in Schools (FMSiS). (This has already been removed from the BF 
Scheme). 

3 Removing requirements to make payments to the General Teaching 
Council as this body is to be abolished at 1 April 2012. 

4 Adding a duty on heads and governors to secure better value for money. 
This replaces item 1 above. 

5 Adding an annual duty on governors to demonstrate compliance with the 
Schools Financial Value Standard. This replaces item 2 above. 

6 Adding a duty on schools to have proper controls to protect against fraud 
and the improper use of public funds. 

7 Amending current provisions to allow where the governing body is satisfied 
that it will not significantly impact with the performance of any duties 
imposed on them by Education Acts, staff employed under community 
facilities powers, can now be funded from the delegated school budget. 

 
The consultation is set out in full at Annex A, with a 19 March deadline for responses. 

 
5.5 The Council is content with these proposed directed revisions and will not, therefore, 

be making a response. 
 

Action for the Schools Forum 
 
5.6 The Forum needs to consider what response, if any, it wishes to make to the DfE 

consultation. 
 

  
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
  

Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 To be advised. 

 
Borough Treasurer 

 
6.2 The Borough Treasurer is satisfied that no significant financial implications arise from 

this report. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
  
6.3 Not applicable. 

26



Unrestricted 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  
 
6.4 None identified.  
 
 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 Not applicable. 
 

Method of Consultation 
 
7.2 Not applicable.   
 

Consultation Responses 
 
7.3 Not applicable.  
 
Background Papers  
DfE Consultation Document 
 
Contact for further information 
David Watkins, Chief Officer: SREI     (01344 354061) 
david.watkins@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Paul Clark, Head of Departmental Finance   (01344 354054) 
paul.clark@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Doc. Ref 
G:\New Alluse\Executive\Schools Forum\(55) 150312\Scheme for financing schools - March 2012 directed 

revisions consultation.doc

27



Unrestricted 

Annex A 
 

DfE Consultation on directed revisions to Schemes for Financing Schools 
 
DIRECTED SCHEME REVISIONS 
 
Under the Education Act 2012, the Secretary of State has the power to issue directed 
revisions to local authority schemes for financing schools. This means that authorities must 
incorporate within, or remove from, their schemes the specified wording, and no other 
process is needed in order to make the changes. 
 
The power of directed revision will be used sparingly, to remove outdated provisions and to 
insert new provisions that are required for the implementation of policy. 
 
The first set of proposed directed revisions relate to announcements Ministers have already 
made or to other provisions in the Education Act. There will, therefore, be just a short 
consultation on the proposals, which also include revisions to the statutory scheme 
guidance. The consultation runs until 19 March. Any comments should be sent to Keith 
Howkins (keith.howkins@education.gsi.gov.uk).  
 

28



Unrestricted 

 
Local Authority Schemes: Directed Revisions 2012  
 
The following sets out the directed revisions the Secretary of State is making to local 
authority schemes.   
- Text in normal font denotes the actual directed revision local authorities are required to 
place in, or remove from, their schemes; 
- Text in italics denotes accompanying guidance.   
 
These revisions will take effect on 1st April 2012.  
 
Removal of requirements from the Scheme 
 
Best Value  
Local authorities must remove any requirement in their schemes for schools to submit a 
statement of Best Value with their budget plan.  
 
The government believes that it is important for schools to achieve value for money, but this 
can be demonstrated in other ways than a written statement.   
  
The Department removed this requirement from its guidance on local authority schemes to 
take effect from 1 April 2011.  
 
Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) 
Local authorities must remove from their schemes requirements relating to the Financial 
Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS).  
 
 A directed revision to schemes requiring schools to meet FMSiS was introduced in 2007.  
The Department has introduced the Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) as a much 
simpler replacement for all maintained schools.  Information on the new SFVS was 
published in July 2011.   
 
6.3 – General Teaching Council 
Local authorities must remove from their schemes requirements relating to payments of 
General Teaching Council (GTC) fees.  
 
The GTC was abolished by the Education Act 2011 with effect from 1st April 2012.   
 
Requirements for inclusion in the Scheme 
 
2.4  Efficiency and value for money (replaces current Best Value section) 
The scheme must include the following provision, which imposes a requirement on schools 
to achieve efficiencies and value for money, to optimise their resources and invest in 
teaching and learning; taking into account purchasing, tendering and contracting 
requirements.  
 
It is for heads and governors to determine at school level how to secure better value for 
money. 
 
The text for this provision is set out below.  
 
Schools must seek to achieve efficiencies and value for money, to optimise the use of their 
resources and to invest in teaching and learning, taking into account the Authority’s 
purchasing, tendering and contracting requirements.  

29



Unrestricted 

 
It is for heads and governors to determine at school level how to secure better value for 
money. 
 
There are significant variations in efficiency between similar schools, and so it’s important for 
schools to review their current expenditure, compare it to other schools, and think about how 
to make improvements. 
 
 
New 2.16 - Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) 
The scheme must include the following provision, which makes it mandatory for all local 
authority maintained schools to complete the SFVS assessment form on an annual basis 
and submit a signed copy to their Authority.  SFVS will also apply to all local authority 
maintained nursery schools and Pupil Referral Units that have a delegated budget.  
  
The text for this provision is set out below.  
 
All local authority maintained schools (including nursery schools and Pupil Referral Units 
(PRUs) that have a delegated budget) must demonstrate compliance with the Schools 
Financial Value Standard (SFVS) and complete the assessment form on an annual basis.  It 
is for the school to determine at what time in the year they wish to complete the form. 
 
Governors must demonstrate compliance through the submission of the SFVS assessment 
form signed by the Chair of Governors.  The form must include a summary of remedial 
actions with a clear timetable, ensuring that each action has a specified deadline and an 
agreed owner. 
 
Maintained schools that did not achieve the Financial Management Standard in Schools 
(FMSiS) must submit the form to the local authority before 31 March 2012, and annually 
thereafter. 
 
All other maintained schools with a delegated budget must submit the form to the local 
authority before 31 March 2013 and annually thereafter.  
 
 
New 2.17 - Fraud 
 
The scheme must include the following provision, which requires schools to have a robust 
system of controls to safeguard themselves against fraudulent or improper use of public 
money and assets.   
 
The text for this provision is set out below.  
  
All schools must have a robust system of controls to safeguard themselves against 
fraudulent or improper use of public money and assets.   
 
The governing body and head teacher must inform all staff of school policies and procedures 
related to fraud and theft, the controls in place to prevent them; and the consequences of 
breaching these controls.  This information must also be included in induction for new school 
staff and governors.     
  
Amended statutory guidance 
 
Amend final section of Annex B from: 
 

30



Unrestricted 

For staff employed under the community facilities power, the default position is that any 
costs must be met by the governing body, but not from the delegated budget. Section 37 
states: 
 
(7)Where a local education authority incur costs— 

(a)in respect of any premature retirement of any member of the staff of a maintained 
school who is employed for community purposes, or 
(b)in respect of the dismissal, or for the purpose of securing the resignation, of any 
member of the staff of a maintained school who is employed for those purposes, 

they shall recover those costs from the governing body except in so far as the authority 
agree with the governing body in writing (whether before or after the retirement, dismissal or 
resignation occurs) that they shall not be so recoverable. 
 
(8)Any amount payable by virtue of subsection (7) by the governing body of a maintained 
school to the local education authority shall not be met by the governing body out of the 
school’s budget share for any financial year. 
 
(9)Where a person is employed partly for community purposes and partly for other purposes, 
any payment or costs in respect of that person is to be apportioned between the two 
purposes; and the preceding provisions of this section shall apply separately to each part of 
the payment or costs. 
 
(We will review this provision in the context of the forthcoming changes which will allow other 
community facilities costs to be charged to delegated budgets from 1 April 2011, but this 
remains the legal position for the time being). 
  
to: 
 
For staff employed under the community facilities power, the default position is that any 
costs must be met by the governing body, and can be funded from the school’s delegated 
budget if the governing body is satisfied that this will not interfere to a significant extent with 
the performance of any duties imposed on them by the Education Acts, including the 
requirement to conduct the school with a view to promoting high standards of educational 
achievement. Section 37 now states: 
 
(7)Where a local education authority incur costs— 

(a)in respect of any premature retirement of any member of the staff of a maintained 
school who is employed for community purposes, or 
(b)in respect of the dismissal, or for the purpose of securing the resignation, of any 
member of the staff of a maintained school who is employed for those purposes, 

they shall recover those costs from the governing body except in so far as the authority 
agree with the governing body in writing (whether before or after the retirement, dismissal or 
resignation occurs) that they shall not be so recoverable. 
 
(7A)Any amount payable by virtue of subsection (7) by the governing body of a maintained 
school in England to the local authority may be met by the governing body out of the 
school’s budget share for any funding period if and to the extent that the condition in 
subsection (7B) is met.  
(7B)The condition is that the governing body are satisfied that meeting the amount out of the 
school’s budget share will not to a significant extent interfere with the performance of any 
duty imposed on them by section 21(2) or by any other provision of the Education Acts. 

31



Unrestricted 

(9)Where a person is employed partly for community purposes and partly for other purposes, 
any payment or costs in respect of that person is to be apportioned between the two 
purposes; and the preceding provisions of this section shall apply separately to each part of 
the payment or costs. 
 
 
 
 

32


	Agenda
	3 Minutes and Matters Arising
	4 Local Authority Proposals for the 2012-13 Schools Budget
	5 The Scheme for Financing Schools - DfE Consultation on Mandatory Changes

